
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

Thursday, 14 March 2019 at 6.00 pm

Civic Suite

(Pre-Board meeting will be from 17.00 – 17.30 followed by Committee Meal)

Committee Meal for all witnesses from 17.15onwards

Children’s Services, Education & 
Skills Scrutiny Board

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do?

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council.

(b) When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must:

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it

 Not participate in any discussion or vote

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter.

Disclosable Interest Description

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses.

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income.

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where—

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class.

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society.



SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN 
BOROUGH COUNCIL

To:
Councillors A Mackiewicz (Chairman), 
J Hulland (Vice-Chairman), D Cole, 
M Gough, J Hamilton, B Holmes, 
A Mackenzie, L McCarthy, A Sandison, 
Mrs G Sleigh, P Thomas, M Wilson, 
Mr B Hall, Hildreth, Mrs E Clark and 
S Wood

NICK PAGE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Council House, Manor Square
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB
Tel. 0121-704 6000 

Mala Mistry 
Tel: 0121 704 6054
Email: mmistry@solihull.gov.uk

Date 6th March 2019

CHILDREN’S SERVICES, EDUCATION & SKILLS SCRUTINY BOARD - 
Thursday, 14 March 2019

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies.

2. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY OR CONFLICTING INTERESTS FROM 
MEMBERS 

To receive declarations of interest from Members in accordance with the Code 
of Conduct (Members are directed to the guidance attached.)

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 

To deal with any questions or deputations received.

4. MINUTES - 15TH JANUARY 2019 (Pages 5 - 12)

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 15th January 2019

5. EMOTIONAL WELLBEING AND MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE (Pages 13 - 52)

For the Scrutiny Board to consider an overarching report on emotional wellbeing 
and mental health services for Children and Young people. The focus at the 
meeting will be to consider how children and young people are supported to 
access mental health / emotional wellbeing services in schools and also how 
people supporting children and young people are aware of mental health needs. 



Scrutiny Board to feedback from their site visit to Smithswood Academy and 
Solar and also from their informal meeting with the Youth Council. 

Scrutiny Board considers evidence / presentation on the following;

 Evidence from Youth Council on mental health conference
 Health and wellbeing in schools 
 Educational Psychology Service
 School Nursing Service 
 Parenting Strategy 

6. CONSIDERING THE IMPACT AND OUTCOMES EMERGING FROM 
SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS (Pages 53 - 60)

For the Scrutiny Board to consider the outcomes / key action emerging from 
previous scrutiny recommendations. 



CHIDLREN’S SERVICES, EDUCATION AND SKILLS SCRUTINY BOARD 

1 

19th JANUARY 2019

MINUTES

Present: Cllrs A Mackiewicz, (Chairman), J Hulland (V Chairman), B Holmes, D Cole, M 
Gough, J Hamilton, L McCarthy, A Mackenzie, P Thomas, M Wilson, G Sleigh, Mr 
B Hall, Mrs J Hildreth

Officers/
Witnesses:

Support 
Officer

Sally Hodges, Director of Children’s Services and Skills 
Frank McSheffrey, Acting Assistant Director, Children’s Services
Phil Leivers, Assistant Director, Learning and Achievement 
Ann Pearson, Team Leader, School Place Planning 
Ann Lowe, Head of Special Education Needs and Disabilities
Stuart McHale, Children’s Services and Skills Finance Manager

Mala Mistry, Scrutiny Officer

MINUTE SILENCE 

A minute silence was held at the start of the meeting as a mark of respect for the 
death of Ross Williams, an Education, Health and Care Plan Coordinator who was 
tragically killed in a road traffic accident at the weekend.

The Director of Children’s Services and Skills explained that Ross was a key member 
of the START Team that was working to support some of the most vulnerable 
children in the Borough to get the help that they needed. He was well liked by his 
colleagues and the young people who he was supporting. She further advised that 
messages of condolences from across the Local Authority were being collated and 
would be passed on to his family.  

RESOLVED
That the Scrutiny Board’s sincere condolences and heartfelt thanks for all 
Ross Williams’s  hard work in supporting young people with SEND in the 
Borough are passed on to Ross’s family.  

1. APOLOGIES 

None received 

2. DECLARATION OF PUCUNIARY / CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Cllr A Mackiewicz declared an interest in his capacity as AMPA Associates and the 
fact his company may have done some ecological work in Solihull schools.  

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS

The Scrutiny Officer advised that no questions and deputations had been made. 

She advised that she had circulated to the Scrutiny Board, the response to the 
question submitted to Dr Brain at the last meeting. 

4. MINUTES – 7th NOVEMBER 2018

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

The Board considered the accuracy of the minutes of the last meeting held on 7th 
November 2018

RESOLVED
That the minutes of the Children’s Services, Education and Skills 
Scrutiny Board held on 7th November was approved as an 
accurate record of the meeting. 

5. DRAFT SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY SCHOOL PLACE 
PLANNING AND SEND STRATEGY 

The Scrutiny Board considered a report of the Assistant Director for Learning and 
Achievement who indicated that a draft commissioning strategy had been developed 
to try and address the rising costs associated with sending children and young people 
with complex needs to out of borough school placements and to look at what could 
be done to develop more in-borough SEND school places. The Team Leader, School 
Place Planning highlighted that the commissioning strategy identified the current 
position and challenges in respect of SEND school place-planning and the key 
priorities and principles to work towards. The strategy would be ‘sister’ document to 
the schools organisational plan and be reviewed/refreshed every year. She advised 
that there had been good engagement from parents of children and young people 
with SEND, head-teachers and other key stakeholders as part of the consultation for 
the draft strategy. She advised that there had been some positive expressions of 
interest from primary schools about working together to develop more in-borough 
SEND provision and this would be followed up throughout the course of the year. 

The scrutiny Board was asked to comment on this report. 

Members noted the expressions of interest from primary schools and inquired about 
the reluctance of secondary schools to proactively engage with creating more in-
borough SEND places. Furthermore the Chairman commented on the excellent 
partnership working between Merstone School and Solihull College where specialist 
places had been made available at their campus in the north of the borough and, 
probed on whether this model could be replicated in other parts of the Borough. In 
response the Team Leader, School Place Planning advised that there had been 
some ongoing constructive discussions with a couple of secondary schools on how 
they could support the provision of in-borough SEND provision and work was also 
been done to see how their strengthened support could be linked to the Ofsted 
framework. In respect of replicating the Merstone/Solihull College model in other 
parts of the Borough, the Team Leader, School Place Planning advised that a 
number of approaches and models were likely to be progressed but the success of 
the Forest Oak/Solihull College (Woodlands Campus) was recognised and following 
on from the pilot, there were plans for a similar arrangement between Hazel Oak 
School and the Blossomfield Campus at Solihull Campus. 

A Member commended the draft commissioning strategy but wanted more 
information about how this would work in practice and also how regional schools 
commissioners would be involved given that the majority of secondary schools in the 
Borough were designated academies. In response, the Children’s Directorate 
Finance Manager advised that that the School Forum had oversight of the High 
Needs Block (HNB) that funded SEN provision as part of the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG) and therefore the Local Authority could not commit any further funding in 
this area and this was comparable with the experiences of other local authorities 
regionally and nationally. However, they would be working in consultation with the 
Schools Forum to ensure extra funding for SEN provision was being used in the most 
appropriate way. She also advised that the regional school commissioner played a 
key role in supporting any business case for extra in-borough SEND provision that 

Page 6



 

was being proposed in good or outstanding academy provision. 

A Member asked for further explanation on the reasons for closing the Auckland 
Education Centre and what the implications would be. In response the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services, Education and Skills explained that performance and 
staffing had been inherently challenging over a number of years at this setting and it 
had been very difficult to recruit good quality staff to support vulnerable pupils at the 
provision. Even though it was a Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) it was identified that the 
majority of pupils had had an unmet SEN need and it was more appropriate that they 
received SEND support rather than being placed in alternative provision or 
mainstream education. 

Members made reference to the need to act earlier to identify and support young 
people with SEND needs that could help avoid the escalation of costly out of borough 
placements and better plan for appropriate support. Another Member made reference 
a personal experience where she felt that it would be useful to have been offered the 
opportunity to have an ECH Plan earlier so that arrangements could be made for her 
son. In response, the Assistant Director, Learning and Achievement emphasized that 
things were now being placed on identifying and addressing issues earlier, 
particularly for those young people going through transitions as support was available 
in the transitions team who were able to forecast costs and have discussions with 
parents at an earlier stage so that various options could be explored in a timely way. 
The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, Education and Skills also highlighted 
that early identification and intervention was a key focus for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and NHS who were identifying the SEND needs earlier due to medical 
advances. The Head of SEND also made reference to the Early Years Inclusion fund 
and My Plan process to provide targeted support available to children before they 
started statutory education and this also helped to identify issues earlier. 

The Chairman asked for more information about how young people with SEND could 
be supported to have a smoother transition between primary and secondary school. 
Another Member made reference to the challenges of teaching disruptive children 
with SEN needs in mainstream education and the need to work closely with parents 
and possibility strengthen working with charities in this area. In response, the 
Assistant Director, Learning and Achievement highlighted that inclusion conferences 
had advocated the need for secondary schools to do more and make reasonable 
adjustments and have the same opportunities for young people with SEND to achieve 
their potential and work was ongoing with secondary schools to encourage them to 
support this. One of the ways this was being done was through the roll out of autism 
training Level 3 and 5 to education practitioners in order to raise awareness and 
change behaviours. It was acknowledged that there was already close working with 
parents and social care coordinators through having a joint team to ensure that SEN 
pupils were getting the right support in the right setting but there was potential to 
better tap into expertise of charities. 

A Member questioned the fairness in the system and inquired further about the socio-
economic group of SEN pupils currently accessing out of Borough placements. In 
response the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, Education and Skills advised 
that managing parents expectations could often be very difficult and sometimes 
tribunals have ruled that the Local Authority have to send a young people to a 
particular school that parents feel best meets their needs. It was acknowledged that 
there were large percentages of SEND pupils being educated outside the Borough 
who were from higher socio-economic backgrounds but the best way of tackling this 
issue was to grow sufficient in-borough places so that high-quality in-borough options 
could be made available. The Director of Children’s Skills and Skills highlighted that 
there was a strategy in place for growing more in-borough and this would be tackled 
individually and during the course of the year. 

Page 7



 

The Chairman made reference to the budget pressures in respect of school transport 
and inquired further about the plans to address this. In response, the Cabinet 
Member for Children, Education and Skills highlighted that this issue was challenging 
as Local Authority had tried to procure more competitive provision but this had not 
been successful and it was acknowledged that it was a niche area. He also advised 
that parents had also been approached to see whether they could drop off / pick up 
their children via a favorable mileage rate but many parents were reluctant to pursue 
this due to the need for adequate respite. The long term strategy for dealing the 
significant cost pressures was to grow in-borough provision that would invariably lead 
to cheaper school transport costs.  

In response to further questions from Members the following areas
 The cost of a ECH Plan and how often it was reviewed, 
 The number and costs associated with young people being educated out of the 

Borough
 why neighbouring authorities were taking up the Local Authorities in-borough SEN 

places
 the recruitment of Education Physiologists and what ‘growing our own’ meant in 

practice
 What the Plan B situation if the autism free school bid failed. 

In response, the Assistant Director of Learning and Skills provided the following 
information. 

 It was highlighted that there was a significant amount of time and resources 
involved in putting together an ECH Plan but the exact cost of producing one was 
not yet known. The plan was supposed to be reviewed annually. However due to 
pressures in the system, this hasn’t been the case, particularly since Local 
Authority had been a pathfinder. Schools would play a leading role in reviewing 
straight-forward ECHP with the Local Authority leading the discussions on more 
complex cases. 

 There were 73 Children and young people with SEND being educated out of 
Borough with over £3million being spent on out of Borough transport costs. 
Sometimes a tribunal could have ruled that the Local Authority has to send a 
young person out of borough to a specialist provision that best meets their needs. 

 If there was a SEND place available in a Solihull Special school, it could not be 
refused even if the application was made outside of the Borough. A Member 
indicated that Birmingham City Council seemed to be able to be more proactive 
and more prepared with obtaining these places as they became available. 

 The recruitment of educational psychologists had been progressive with the head 
of the service being appointed and two more due to start work shortly. They would 
play a pivotal role as part of having oversight of ECH Plans and there was 
opportunity for them to be involved with traded services with academies. It was 
recognised that there was a lot of training involved in becoming an educational 
physiologist with a students from a math’s and psychology background having to 
learn on the job. Therefore the head education psychologist was keen to develop 
and support students as part of ‘growing our own’ service. 

At yet there was been no feedback on whether the free school bid for a SEND school 
had been successful and it was anticipated that information from the Department of 
Education would be more forthcoming in Spring 2019. Meanwhile plan B was being 
worked on and involved advanced discussions with a particularly secondary school in 
the Borough. 

Page 8



 

The Chairman summarised the discussion and placed emphasis on the need to 
maintain and accelerate an early intervention approach. 

RESOLVED
(i). The Scrutiny Board noted the successful partnership working between Forest Oak 
and Woodlands Campus, Solihull College and RECOMMENDS  that Officers explore  
replicating this model and developing similar centres in secondary schools (11-16) in 
all parts of the Borough. 
(ii). The Scrutiny Board make the following RECOMMENDATIONS to Senior Leaders 
and the Cabinet Member that supports with tackling SEND pressures. 

a). Support early intervention and provide help to prevent SEND becoming 
more costly in later years.
b). Support the SEND Commissioning strategy that aims to deliver 
more local places.
c). Support the continual roll-out of inclusion and Autism training in 
mainstream schools.
d). Evaluate the costs of producing an EHCP
e). Produce a document (in addition to the strategy) that explains the 
SEND process for parents to enable them to better navigate through the 

service and manage expectations.
(iii). The Scrutiny Board that that draft Commissioning strategy was a excellent 
document which could be further improved by a glossary of terms that explain key 
acronyms
 

6. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE

In introducing this report, the Chairman explained that the purpose of this item was 
for the Scrutiny Board to better understand what was being done to reduce rising 
costs in children’s social services in the context of high demand. 

The Acting Assistant Director, Children and Families provided an overview of his 
report and summarised the rationale for developing the Family Support Services that 
would be replacing Engage and Edge of Care Service from 1st April 2019. One the 
key reasons for introducing this restructure was to better deal with the rise in numbers 
of Looked After Children (LAC), Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) 
and Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) and the complexity of cases coming into 
children’s social work services. He indicated that the proposed reconfiguration of the 
service would lead to the development of four area-based family support teams, the 
bringing together of elements of the current Children’s Assessment Team and 
Children in Need Teams and integrating elements of Engage team into the Multi-
agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) so that lower-level crisis could be responded to 
more broadly. There would also be the creation of family conference unit to work 
strengthened working with families to resolve issues and prevent issues from 
escalating.

The Acting Assistant Director for Children’s Services further outlined the current 
pressures facing children services with rising Section 17 Child in Need cases, having 
to fund the remand cost of particular young person and battling with the Government 
to ensure that adequate support/resources could be made available to fund this 
situation as well as the shortfall in funding for increasing number of UASC who are 
being cared for by the Borough. 

The Scrutiny Board was asked to comment on this report. 

The Members were concerned to read about the rise in CSE, trafficking and wanted 
more information to what was being done to address this so that it could be 

Page 9



 

prevented, A Member who worked with young people with SEND needs commented 
that it was likely that many young people who were being groomed/exploited had 
SEND needs and it was very difficult for them to get out of abusive situations easily it 
was occurring across county lines. Further it was often difficult for vulnerable young 
people to recognize that this kind of behaviour was wrong as they trusted and 
believed their perpetrators. In response, the Acting Assistant Director, Children’s 
Service advised that the Local Authority was working very closely with the Police and 
with colleagues in Birmingham to tackle some of these complex exploitation issues, 
particularly as they crossed boundaries. He advised that sometimes young people 
who have been subject to abuse in this way may have to be moved far away from the 
area for their own safety. 

In response to further questions from Members about the prevalence of Children 
Sexual Exploitation in the Borough and what was being done to address it, the Acting 
Assistant Director of Children’s Services highlighted that there were 211 children 
currently on various levels as categorised by a CSE Screening tool. Most were on 
Level 1 where risk of CSE had been identified and precautionary action was being 
taken but there were some young people on Level 2 and 3 where the CSE risk was 
higher or was actively taking place and for these cases a social worker had been 
allocated. He further advised that a multi-disciplinary approach was taken to tackling 
CSE and the new exploitation team that was being created would have a remit of 
providing support up to the age of 25.  The Cabinet Member explained that he serves 
on the current LSCB’s CSE Steering Group which is chaired by a Police Officer and 
has representation from partner agencies, as well as the Business Manager from the 
Safeguarding Adults Board. Potential links had been recognised between CSE, 
County Lines drug trafficking and Modern Slavery, so the Steering Group’s remit had 
been expanded to cover all forms of child exploitation. The Director of Children’s 
Services and Skills assured the Scrutiny Board that robust arrangements were in 
place with strong oversight from the Cabinet Member, Senior Officers, Leader and 
Chief Executive. The Local Authority’s arrangements had been commended by the 
CSE peer review that had taken place last year. A CSE action plan was being 
actively implemented but she stressed that even though it was complex and 
challenging, this area was only affecting a small number of young people in the 
Borough.

Members made reference to the community empowerment strand of Engage and how 
this would be taken forward as part of the revised family support arrangements. In 
response, the Acting Head of Children’s Services advised that there was a lot of joint 
working, training and development currently taking place with the stronger 
communities directorate who help them understand the key issues before they take 
over services previously carried out by Engage. He assured the Scrutiny Board that 
key expertise would not be lost but instead harnessed through cross-directorate 
working and developing a broader staff skills set.  In response to a further query 
about the lack of youth service provision in the Borough, it was highlighted that this 
would also consider as part of the transition towards a broader community-based 
services. 

A Member probed further about how reported shortfall in the Troubled Families 
allocation and what would be done to address this. In response the Acting Assistant 
for Children’s Services advised that the Troubled Families initiative was funded on a 
payment by result formula. Whilst the scheme had funded the programme in Solihull 
up to now, there was currently no certainty on continuity of the scheme from 2020 
onwards, this would mean that there would be significant shortfall as these services 
could be stopped immediately as they were likely to have devastating impact. It was 
acknowledged this was an issue facing many local authorities and the LGA had made 
representations at a local and national level so that the profile of challenging 
implications was being heard by the Government. 

Page 10



 

A Member asked about whether the proposed new restructure would result in 
redundancies. In response, the Acting Assistant Director advised that the majority of 
the current workforce could be re-employed with the proposed new service with staff 
being offered a choice of roles based on their skills and expertise. There were some 
Voluntary Redundancies but these were in single figures. 

The Chairman summarised the discussion and advised that it would be very useful for 
the Scrutiny Board to do a re-visit the CSE Team and see first hand the complexity of 
their work and how it has changed over the past couple of years. He also indicated 
that the nature of rises in cost in children’s services was worrying. The Director of 
Children Services and Skills suggested it might be helpful for Scrutiny to have an 
oversight of how the service was being implemented as part of the Work Programme 
for the new Municipal Year. 

RESOLVED
(i). The Scrutiny Board supported the Local Authorities efforts to obtain 
costs for UASC from the Home Office
(ii). The Scrutiny Board noted that the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) had 
been expanded to cover up to 25 years and it was agreed that this 
area should be subject to scrutiny in the new Municipal Year 
(iii). The Scrutiny Board note the development of the Family Support 
Service and agreed to review its implementation once it had been  
embedded.

7. BUDGET FRAMEWORK 2019-20 – 21/22

The Children’s Services and Skills Finance Manager presented a report of the 
Director of Resources/Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children’s Services 
and Skills that outlined the proposed budget framework for the next three years. It 
was outlined that Cabinet in June 2018 had recognised the significant pressures 
facing children’s services and had allocated windfall funding to help deal with the cost 
and demand pressures facing the directorate. As a condition of this funding, an 
independent financial review took place last year. This had informed the budget 
process and the Budget Strategy Group had recommended additional resources in 
the future Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for SEND transport, children’s 
placements and Early Help.  In addition, the Government had made available an 
extra £1.487 million to deal with pressures in adult and children’s social services and 
it was anticipated that this money would be split equally between children’s and 
adults services. It was noted that the Troubled Families funding was time limited and 
were awaiting further information from government on the future of the Project and its 
funding. No further savings were proposed for Children’s Services in the proposed 
new MTFS. 

The Chairman noted the rising demand and rising cost of services and probed further 
on what the long term strategy was for dealing with demand and rising costs in the 
long term in order to provide sustainable services going forwards. In response, the 
Director of Children’s Services and Skills acknowledged the pressures and was 
pleased that budget framework did not compel children’s services to make any further 
significant savings and the Council-wide recognition of the pressures through the 
allocation of the windfall had been welcomed. In addition, the Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services, Education and Skills made reference to the previous use of 
reserves that had been used to deal with previous pressures which had now been 
fully utilised. He said that the Local Authority had to provide services as part of its 
statutory duties and this is why extra resources had been made available. But it was 
recognised that this was not a long-term solution and lobbying via the Local 
Government Association for more funding was actively being pursued. 

Page 11



 

In response to a comment by the Chairman on the need to maintain staff motivation 
and wellbeing during difficult socio-economic climate, the Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services, Education and Skills agreed that this was very important as well 
as having good supportive management and team environments which was 
something that the Local Authority was keen to maintain and enhance. 

The Chairman made reference to the fees and charges in Appendix C in particular 
the hire of minibuses and asked Officers to look at whether by not increasing costs 
gradually, there would be large and significant increase in a few years time. 

The Chairman summarised the discussion and praised the work being done to 
balance the budgets in the directorate over extremely difficult times. 

RESOLVED
(i) The Scrutiny Board notes the amount of children going into care is 

increasing, the demand on SEND services and SEND transport is rising 
and these areas represent a long term budget red risk

(ii) The Scrutiny Board welcomes the windfall funding approved by Cabinet 
and outlined in Appendix A

(iii) The Scrutiny Board supports the increase in fees and charges but 
expressed concern that the mini-bus charges have not been increased 
and at some point in the further in the future they will rise by a 
considerable amount causing an issue for the users.

THANKS

The Chairman placed on record the Scrutiny Boards thanks to the Director of 
Children’s Services and Skills for the support she had provided over the years as it 
was her last meeting, The Scrutiny Board wished her well with her future endeavors.  

The meeting finished at 7.58pm

Page 12



Meeting date: Thursday 14th March 2019

Report to: Children’s Services, Education & Skills 
Scrutiny Board

Subject/report 
title:

Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Services for Children and 
Young People

Report from: Louise Rees
Director of Children’s Services

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer:

Julie Hackett
Head of Service – Commissioning for Children and Young People

Wards affected: 
☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood |
☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle |
☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South |
☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege

Public/private 
report:

Public

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph:

Select an Exemption paragraph from the Quick Parts drop-down list

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide an overview of the local transformation of Solihull’s emotional wellbeing 
and mental health support for children, young people and their families.

2. Decision(s) recommended

2.1 To note contents of the report for background and context to inform the wider Scrutiny 
Board discussion.

3. What is the issue?

3.1 Future in Mind - Promoting, protecting and improving our children and young people’s 
mental health and wellbeing (March 2015): requires local areas to set out how they 
will transform emotional wellbeing and mental health services for children and young 
people in line with the key principles set out in the report.

3.2 The ‘Five Year Forward View for Mental Health’ made the case for transforming 
mental health care in England, all of the recommendations, incorporating the Future in 
Mind recommendations, have been accepted by the NHS and the document 
‘Implementing the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health’ sets out the blueprint for 
delivery over the coming years to 2020/21 to achieve transformation.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



3.3 Each area was required to develop a five year plan to deliver the Future in Mind 
recommendations. Solihull’s local transformation plan was refreshed in November 
2018 and is published on Birmingham and Solihull CCG website, Solihull LTP 
November 2018.

3.4 The Local Transformation Plan refresh outlines the key achievements in the previous 
year and priorities for the year ahead. These are outlined below.

Key Achievements

3.5 We are privileged to work alongside some exceptional young people who, as experts 
by experience are members of our Future in Mind Local Transformation Board, and 
include representatives from the Solihull Youth Council and the Children in Care 
Council (OVOS – Our Voice Our Services). Two young people from Solihull are also 
young advisors to the Midlands Children and Young People’s Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies (CYPIAPT) Collaborative. 

3.6 These young people are constructive, supportive and solution focussed in their 
challenge to services and commissioners; they are driven by a passion to make 
improvements that will benefit others. 

3.7 Young people planned a young person’s mental health conference, ‘You in Mind’ held 
on the 10th October 2018 – World Mental Health Day to raise awareness of mental 
health issues and the services available in Solihull, sharing good practice across 
schools as well as reduce stigma and identify gaps. Over 250 people were at the 
conference including 162 young people from 17 Solihull secondary schools/FE 
colleges. 

3.8 Solar, Solihull’s emotional wellbeing and mental health service for children and young 
people (0-19) was set up as a service not about thresholds or tiers but about timely 
access to appropriate support in line with children and young people’s needs. We now 
have a truly integrated service with staff from Birmingham and Solihull Mental Health 
Foundation Trust, Barnardo’s and Autism West Midlands working alongside each 
other.  The integrated model is at the heart of the working culture within Solar, with 
professional respect and integrity between all professionals, recognising the value and 
skills that each bring to the service.

3.9 Future in Mind was clear that children and young people ‘… should only have to tell 
your story once’ Solar recognises this by using one clinical record and a single care 
plan; ensuring children and young people shape the services they receive. 

3.10 2017/18 was the first full year that the crisis care team in Solar had been operational; 
they are available 7 days a week from 8am to 8pm. During the year the team had 350 
referrals of which 256 were children and young people not currently receiving a 
service from Solar, enabling them to get timely support.

3.11 The Solar Eating Disorder team have exceeded the national targets, as at the end of 
March 2018, 100 per cent of urgent cases were seen within one week and 100 per 
cent of routine cases were seen within four weeks.

3.12 Solar was re-inspected by the Care Quality Commission in early January 2018, the 

Page 14

https://www.birminghamandsolihullccg.nhs.uk/about-us/publications/strategic/1888-solihull-emotional-wellbeing-and-mental-health-services-for-children-and-young-people-local-transformation-plan/file
https://www.birminghamandsolihullccg.nhs.uk/about-us/publications/strategic/1888-solihull-emotional-wellbeing-and-mental-health-services-for-children-and-young-people-local-transformation-plan/file


specialist community mental health service was rated as “good” overall, and indeed 
they were rated as good for all five domains of safe, caring, responsive, effective and 
well led this is a significant improvement from the previous “Inadequate” rating. There 
quickly followed another inspection, this time by Barnardo’s Corporate Audit and 
Inspection Unit (CAIU) which focused on the primary mental health element of Solar 
and rated them as “Good with aspects of outstanding.”  

3.13 The Ofsted/CQC Joint local area SEND inspection in Solihull in October 2017 noted 
that “Mental health services have been commissioned to reflect local and national 
priorities. Good progress is being made so that children and young people are able to 
access a more timely and flexible service that meets their needs.”

3.14 The West Midlands Quality Review Service led a peer review of the Solar service in 
July 2018, their report published in September 2018 was very positive. WMQRS - 
Solar review report 

3.15 As a result of the system wide local transformation Solihull exceeded the NHS 
England access target for 2017/18 of 30% of children and young people with a 
diagnosable mental health problem receiving NHS funded treatment, reaching 
33.75%.

3.16 The Fiveway Café, developed and led by Solihull Council’s Engage service supported 
by Solar, was recognised by the West Midlands Combined Authority’s Thrive Mental 
Health Commission Awards in January 2018, winning the Mental Health Star for 
Solihull.

3.17 A pilot of online support and counselling for 11-25 year olds called Kooth was 
commissioned in November 2017, delivered by Xenzone. Many children and young 
people are accessing support and counselling from this anonymous online service. 
Some 1,891 Children and Young People who have registered with Kooth and logged 
on a total of 9,832 times in the twelve months from November 2017 to December 
2018. Feedback is obtained via a questionnaire that appears on the Kooth homepage, 
asking young people why they came to Kooth. There were 1230 responses from 891 
unique young people in the period November 2017 – November 2018. 89% of these 
respondents would recommend Kooth to a friend,

3.18 A Solar clinician and foster carer pitched their idea for a resource library to a 
“Dragon’s Den” at Birmingham and Solihull Mental Health Foundation Trust. Their 
idea, in partnership with Solihull libraries became ‘the Reading Den’ which opened in 
May 2018.  Based at Chelmsley Wood library the Reading Den offers a range of 
books and resources to support parents/carers and their children think and talk about 
thoughts, feelings and experiences, both ordinary and more difficult. In this way the 
Den hopes to help children and families, particularly those recovering from the impact 
of early painful experiences.

3.19 Priorities for 19/20 

There is more to do, to deliver local transformation of Solihull’s children and young 
people’s mental health services in line with the Future in Mind recommendations. 
Following consultation and a review of our local transformation plan, we have agreed 

Page 15

http://www.wmqrs.nhs.uk/download/840/Solihull-CAMHS--V1-20180924_1543238132.pdf
http://www.wmqrs.nhs.uk/download/840/Solihull-CAMHS--V1-20180924_1543238132.pdf


that we need to continue to work together as a partnership to deliver the following 
system wide priorities; 

(a) Promoting Resilience

 Support children young people in raising awareness about mental health
 Continue to work with schools & colleges to encourage the development of whole 

school approaches to supporting pupil’s emotional wellbeing & mental health.
 Develop more workshops for parents, co-delivered by parents and young people 

who are experts by experience.

(b) Improving Access

 To put Solihull forward to pilot school mental health support teams when the 
opportunity arises. 
(Mental health support for children and young people will be embedded in schools 
and colleges. The Children and Young People’s Mental Health Green Paper 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/transforming-children-and-young-
peoples-mental-health-provision-a-green-paper) set out proposals to improve 
mental health support in schools and colleges. Over the next five years the NHS 
will fund new Mental Health Support Teams working in schools and colleges, 
building on the support already available, which will be rolled out to between one-
fifth and a quarter of the country by the end of 2023.)

 Explore how we can offer 24 hour access to crisis support; working with Forward 
Thinking Birmingham to think about how this can be provided from 8pm to 8am 
when the crisis team are not available.

 Continued focus on transitions as young people move into adulthood
 Explore and clarify the offer in relation to early years.
 Work collaboratively with NHS England specialised commissioners to implement 

new models of care for Tier 4 inpatient provision across the West Midlands.

(c) Care of the most vulnerable

 Reduce waiting times for mental health services and autism spectrum disorder 
assessment and diagnosis service

 Continue to focus on ensuring vulnerable CYP are supported to access emotional 
wellbeing and mental health services at the right time and in the right place for 
them

 Explore how we can develop the local offer for 18 to 25 year olds who need 
emotional wellbeing and mental health support (including care leavers, young 
people with special educational needs and disabilities, young people who have 
been subjected to exploitation and other young people who have had adverse 
childhood experiences).

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/transforming-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health-provision-a-green-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/transforming-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health-provision-a-green-paper


(d) Accountability & Transparency

 We will work with partners to agree the model for children and young people’s 
emotional wellbeing and mental health services from April 2020 and beyond for 
Birmingham and Solihull CCG population.

 We will ensure that our Local Transformation Plans and service development 
continues to be driven by children, young people and families. 

(e) Developing the Workforce

 Evaluate the impact of youth mental health first aid training and explore 
sustainability

 Continue to embed the CYPIAPT principles of evidence based therapy, routine 
outcome measures and participation into the Solar service.

 Support the delivery of the Birmingham and Solihull STP workforce strategy, 
including building capability within the voluntary and third sector workforce

3.20 Mental health problems often develop early and, between the ages of 5-15, one in 
every nine children has a mental disorder. Half of all mental health problems are 
established by the age of 14, with three quarters established by 24 years of age. 
Prompt access to appropriate support enables children and young people 
experiencing difficulties to maximise their prospects for a healthy and happy life. 

3.21 Updated national prevalence data for children and young people with mental health 
disorders was published in November 2018, a summary of that is available at this link 
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/F6/A5706C/MHCYP%202017%20Summary.pdf.  While the 
latest prevalence survey has shown only a modest increase in diagnosable problems 
since 2004 – from 10.1% to 11.2% – this overall figure includes concerning rates of 
mental distress particularly amongst late teenage girls. Whilst some of the data is 
experimental the report indicates the following in 2017;

(a) Preschool children: one in eighteen 2 to 4 year olds had a disorder

(b) Primary school years: one in ten 5 to 10 year olds had a disorder

(c) Secondary school years: one in seven 11 to 16 year olds had a disorder

(d) Transitioning to adulthood: one in six 17 to 19 year olds had a disorder

(e) Focus on young women: one in four 17 to 19 year old girls had a disorder

3.22 Further work is being undertaken by Public Health England to use this data to produce 
prevalence data for local areas taking into account factors such as the socioeconomic 
presentation of the local area. This will inform an updated needs assessment for 
children and young people (0-25) emotional wellbeing and mental health in Solihull.

3.23 The NHS Long Term Plan was published in January 2019, and is available at this link 
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-long-term-plan/. 

3.24 The Long term plan states that “Under this Long Term Plan, the NHS is making a new 

Page 17

https://files.digital.nhs.uk/F6/A5706C/MHCYP%202017%20Summary.pdf
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-long-term-plan/


commitment that funding for children and young people’s mental health services will 
grow faster than both overall NHS funding and total mental health spending…. Over 
the next five years, the NHS will therefore continue to invest in expanding access to 
community-based mental health services to meet the needs of more children and 
young people in England. By 2023/24, at least an additional 345,000 children and 
young people aged 0-25 will be able to access support via NHS funded mental health 
services and school or college-based Mental Health Support Teams. Over the coming 
decade the goal is to ensure that 100% of children and young people who need 
specialist care can access it.

3.25 What is clear is that a whole system approach is needed to support children and 
young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental health and also to support families of 
children and young people experiencing mental health difficulties. A number of brief 
presentations have been prepared to further update Scrutiny Board members at the 
meeting to show the range of work that is currently happening across Solihull. 

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them?

4.1 This aim of this report is to provide an overview of the progress of the Local 
Transformation of Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Services for Children and 
Young people in Solihull.

4.2 Visits to Solar and a Secondary school have been arranged for Children’s Services, 
Education & Skills Scrutiny Board members.

4.3 Children’s Services, Education & Skills Scrutiny Board members will have the 
opportunity to meet informally with the Solihull Youth Council.

4.4 Presentations at the Children’s Services, Education & Skills Scrutiny Board meeting 
will provide further updates.

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option

5.1 The planned visits and presentations along with this report will provide background 
information and context for the Children’s Services, Education & Skills Scrutiny Board 
members to review progress of the system wide transformation of emotional wellbeing 
and mental health services, consider what is working well and the gaps and 
challenges that remain.  

6. Implications and Considerations

6.1 Delivery of key themes in the Council Plan:

☒ Improve Health and Wellbeing – 

Delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-19

Page 18



The local transformation plan contributes to the delivery of the following Health and 
Wellbeing priorities

 Improve Health and Wellbeing (to improve the mental health and emotional 
wellbeing of children and young people through development of a mental health 
service model that focuses on prevention, early identification of mental health 
problems and development of resilience, which would include capacity building 
within schools.)

 Improve access to mental health services for children and young people with 
learning disabilities.

☐ Managed Growth - 

☒ Build Stronger Communities 

The local transformation plan is based on a strategy that prioritises resilience, 
partnership and co-production.

☐ Deliver Value - 

6.2 Implications for children and young people, vulnerable groups and particular 
communities:

6.2.1 Meeting the emotional wellbeing and mental health needs of looked after children and 
other vulnerable children and young people is a key focus for this work.

6.3 Consultation and Scrutiny

6.3.1 A report on the Performance and Effective of Solar was taken to Children’s Services, 
Education & Skills and Health and Adult Social Care Joint Scrutiny Board on the 13th 
December 2017.

6.3.2 The Scrutiny Board made the following recommendations to Commissioners 
managing the Solar Services:-.

(a) For consideration to be taken to develop an all-age mental health strategy to 
better tackle issues in respect of transitions; 

(b) For Solar to continue their engagement with local schools/GP’s; 

(c) For Solar to strengthen being shaped by children and young people.

6.3.3 An update was requested in April 2018, by which time Solar had been re-inspected by 
the Care Quality Commission (January 2018), and rated good across all domains. 
http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAH1800.pdf 

Page 19

http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAH1800.pdf


(a) BSMHFT (Solar) & Forward Thinking Birmingham have drawn up a transitions 
policy and protocol to ensure transitions are better managed, this is a quality 
measure is being monitored and measured against over a 2 year period.

(b) Solar continue to engage with GPs and schools delivering services from 
selected schools, working with specialist schools and home school leads to 
develop effective pathways. Solar are supporting a primary care pilot where a 
children and young people’s mental health practitioner is based within selected 
GP practices to support with signposting and early intervention

(c) Solar continue to engage children and young people and families in service 
developments, a young advisor is engaged in supporting the team to develop a 
children and young people led forum

6.3.4 The local transformation plan is led and overseen by a Local Transformation Board, 
chaired by Birmingham and Solihull CCG Clinical Director for Mental Health, parents 
and young people are members of that Board. 

6.3.5 The Local Transformation Plan refresh has been produced collaboratively with Solar, 
Local Authority Children’s services and Local Transformation Board members.

6.3.6 The commissioner met with a number of groups to consult on priorities including the 
SEND parent’s forum, the LSCB/SSAB Learning Faculty and the CCG Transforming 
Care Children’s Operational sub-group.

6.3.7 The outcomes and outputs of ‘You in Mind’ Mental Health Conference for young 
people on World Mental Health Day (10th October 2018) have been reported to the 
Local transformation Board and were incorporated into the final refreshed Local 
Transformation Plan.

6.3.8 The final version of the refreshed Local Transformation Plan was approved by 
Birmingham and Solihull CCG Strategic Programme Board and SMBC Children’s and 
Skills DLT and assured by through an NHSE assurance process.

6.4 Financial implications:

6.4.1 Solar is jointly commissioned and funded by Birmingham and Solihull CCG and 
SMBC, the funding contribution from SMBC is currently £500k per annum.

6.4.2 NHSE have set out the additional funding within CCG baseline for the five years of the 
plan, subject to on-going assurance of progress. This is set out in detail in the 
progress report, the additional NHSE funding allocated for local transformation in 
Solihull for 2019/20 is £86,000, all but £19,000 is already committed.

6.5 Legal implications:

6.5.1 Solihull MBC lead on the commissioning of emotional wellbeing and mental health 
services on behalf of Solihull CCG under a Section 75 agreement of the National 
Health Service Act 2006.

Page 20



6.6 Risk implications:

6.6.1 Current identified risks are detailed in the Local Transformation Plan progress report.

6.7 Statutory Equality Duty:

6.7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was completed to inform the development of the 
service specification for the new Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health service (now 
known as Solar).

7. List of appendices referred to

7.1 Local Transformation Plan for Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and 
Mental Health. Solihull LTP November 2018 

7.2 Solar; Care Quality Commission Report (January 2018) 
http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAH1800.pdf

7.3 Ofsted/CQC Joint local area SEND inspection in Solihull in October 2017 
https://files.api.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/2740469 

7.4 West Midlands Quality Review Service – peer review of Solar, report published 
September 2018 WMQRS - Solar review report 

8. Background papers used to compile this report

8.1 Future in Mind (March 2015) 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/
Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf 

8.2 Five Year Forward View for Mental health (Feb 2016) https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf 

8.3 Five Year Forward View for Mental Health Implementation Plan 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/fyfv-mh.pdf 

8.4 The Children and Young People’s Mental Health Green Paper and Government 
Response (https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/transforming-children-and-
young-peoples-mental-health-provision-a-green-paper)

8.5 National prevalence data for children and young people with mental health disorders 
published by NHS Digital in November 2018 
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/F6/A5706C/MHCYP%202017%20Summary.pdf.  

9. List of other relevant documents

9.1 As above

Page 21

https://www.birminghamandsolihullccg.nhs.uk/about-us/publications/strategic/1888-solihull-emotional-wellbeing-and-mental-health-services-for-children-and-young-people-local-transformation-plan/file
http://www.cqc.org.uk/sites/default/files/new_reports/AAAH1800.pdf
https://files.api.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/2740469
http://www.wmqrs.nhs.uk/download/840/Solihull-CAMHS--V1-20180924_1543238132.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/fyfv-mh.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/transforming-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health-provision-a-green-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/transforming-children-and-young-peoples-mental-health-provision-a-green-paper
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/F6/A5706C/MHCYP%202017%20Summary.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Presentations to CSESSB

Members of the Scrutiny Board asked for evidence from a range of 
different stakeholders to talk to them about the following two focused 
areas under the overarching theme of mental health and emotional 
wellbeing;

1. How mainstreams schools deal with mental health and emotional 
wellbeing issues 

2. How the Local Authority and partners help and support others to 
better support young people with mental health and emotional 
wellbeing needs. 

There will be presentations from the following stakeholders at the 
Scrutiny Board meeting followed by the overarching report written by the 
Head of Service

 Youth Council 
 Healthy Schools Programme 
 Educational Psychology Service
 School Nursing Services 
 Parenting Strategy (Public Health

The Scrutiny Board will have also done evidence-gathering prior to the 
scrutiny board meeting by doing the following activities

 Informal meeting with the Youth Council (5th March) 
 Visit to Smithswood Academy (14th March)
 Visit to Solar (14th March)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



YOU IN MIND 
Young people’s mental health 

conference 2018 

P
age 25



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

 

Conference data: 
Attendance: 
17 Solihull secondary schools/FE colleges 
• 162 young people 
• 28 teaching/school support staff 
• 35 service providers 
• 16 senior officers from the council and 

agencies 
• 23 staff to help us host 
• 6 others including the mayor and guest 

speakers 

P
age 26



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

 

Conference data: 
We did evaluations at the start and end 
of the conference to measure impact 
 
• 144 forms were returned 
• 132 were fully completed 
 

We asked 2 questions……. 

P
age 27



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

 

Question: 
 How much do you know about mental health 
services in Solihull? 
Data analysis showed 96% increase in 
knowledge of support services available 
Question: 
How confident are you in talking about 
mental health issues to people you know? 
Data analysis showed 66% increase in 
confidence in talking about issues 

 

P
age 28



 
YOU IN MIND 

Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

 Conference outcomes: 
• Young people and school staff said they 

were more aware of the support available 
to them 

• Professionals know young people’s issues 
with services and how they think they can 
be improved 

• The Engage service was asked to run 
confidence and mental health ambassador 
training in schools 

• Everyone was talking about mental health! 
 

P
age 29



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

 

Delegate quotes… 
• “Enjoyed meeting all the services and made contacts” 
• “I really enjoyed Relley C performance she was inspiring” 
• “The talking to the other people and making things better” 
• “Feel like we know who to speak to”  
• “Everything flowed nicely – relaxed” 
• “Lots of information, very informative” 
• “The organisation of the talks and the atmosphere” 
• “There was amazing community spirit” 
• “People sharing real stories and expressing their views on mental 

health” 
• “We learned about many different services which we will flag up at 

our college” 
 

P
age 30



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

What issues the conference 
flagged up… 

 
Many young people unaware of services 

Confidentiality  
Waiting times and accessibility 
Support for families and carers 
Communication between services 

P
age 31



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

How we feel things could be 
improved… 

 
Better promotion of service 

Clearer guidelines on confidentiality  
Shorter waiting times 

Information and visual resources of venues used 
More support and inclusion for families and 

carers 
Services need to talk to each other 

P
age 32



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

WHAT NEXT? 
Awaiting the professionals panel’s answers 

Follow up with school pledges 

“mini conference” to review and evaluate 
progress 

 

P
age 33



YOU IN MIND 
Young People’s Mental Health Conference 2018 

That’s it from us! 
 
 

 
 

ANY QUESTIONS? 

P
age 34



Solihull Healthy Schools 

Programme 

 • Whole school approach 

• Updated to reflect national quality marks and 

recommendations around mental health 

• Good engagement with schools 

• Links made between physical and mental health 

• Local authority funding for the Health Related 

Behaviour Questionnaire 

P
age 35

http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/solihull-healthy-schools/
http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/solihull-healthy-schools/
http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/data/
http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/data/


 

P
age 36

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiLjrGQ5t7gAhXo1uAKHf9OBwAQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://slideplayer.com/slide/11433134/&psig=AOvVaw32PVkZvpYbX-C8kGo4ouFQ&ust=1551455977081577


Personal, social, health and 

economic education (PSHE) 

• Changing statutory requirements  

• Local Transformation Plan funding  

• Training for all primary schools - 

PSHE/Relationships and sex education 

• Health and wellbeing website/Twitter 

• Governor training – mentally healthy 

schools/RSE/online safety/anti bullying 

• Online safety briefings for schools 

P
age 37

http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/emotional-wellbeing-and-mental-health/
https://www.solgrid.org.uk/education/support-services/governor-services/
https://www.jigsawpshe.com/


Mental Health First Aid 
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

173 school staff 

 

153 Sixth Form Students 

 

8 school staff (from SISS 

Central Training) 

 

14 school nurses 50 Sixth Form/Post 16  Staff 

(including Solihull 6th Form 

and Solihull College) 

 

14 school staff Mental Health 

Awareness for managers 

(delivered by SMBC HR) 

1 Solihull Young Carer 

 

40 staff signed up for 2 

further MHA sessions 

46 Engage workers 

 

P
age 38



Solihull Community Educational 

Psychology Service 

 
CSESSB 

14th March 2019 

 

Supporting Mental Health & Wellbeing 
 

Dr Halit M Hulusi C Psychol 

Principal Educational Psychologist 

Community Educational Psychology Service 

 

 

P
age 39



• Registered Educational Psychologist (EP) 
– No less than 9 years to train (First Degree to Doctorate) 

– Work with children, adolescents and adults (schools, families, LAs) 

 

– Specialist knowledge 

• Child and adolescent psychological development 

• Psychological consultation skills 

• Therapeutic skills 

• Research and evaluation 

 

“Bringing a psychological view to problems and facilitating solutions” 

2 

What is an EP? 

P
age 40



Statutory 
• The Children and Families Act (2014) 

requires the local authority to provide 

psychological advice for an Education 

Health and Care Plan (EH&C plan)  

      +300 per annum 

 

• Annual Reviews  of EHC Plans +1,700 

 

• Providing Expert Witness evidence and 

consultation for tribunals  The Special 

Educational Needs and Disability 

Regulations (2014) .  

 

Preventative / Traded  

Assessment Consultation 

Training Research 

3 

What do EPs do? 

P
age 41



4 

Individuals / Groups 

• Psychological Assessment 

• Mindfulness  

• Therapeutic Work (e.g. ACT, SFBT, CBT)  

• Psychological Coaching 

• Emotionally Based School Avoidance 

Adults / Groups 

• Consultation  

• Professional Supervision 

• Therapeutic work (e.g. ACT, CBT) 

• Solution Circles 

• Therapeutic Training 

Organisational 

• Consultation & Training 

• Whole school approaches (e.g. Emotion Coaching) 

• Curriculum Design (e.g. Emotionally Health Schools) 

• Project design and evaluation 

• Whole LA project design and evaluation e.g. Mental Health First Aid 

 

Working with Mental Wellbeing 

P
age 42



5 

Growing the Community Psychology Team 

Dr Halit Hulusi 
Principal EP 

Dr Louisa Jones 
Senior EP 

Melissa Jones 
Senior EP 

Dr Holly Ackland 

 EP 

Dr Kim Bennion  

EP 

 Amy Humphries  

EP 

Dr Tom Boden  

EP 

Dr Louise Rayfield   

EP 

Dr Faye Hingeley 
EP 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Solihull Healthy Child Programme 0-19 School Nursing 

P
age 45



School Nurse offer: Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing  

• Background: 

SWFT awarded the Solihull Healthy Child Programme Service contract in Sept 2017 
 

School Nursing structure: 4 SCHPN 12 Staff Nurses 1 Community Nursery Nurse 5 

School Nurse Assistants 1 Administrator.      WTE = 14.93  
 

Named school nurse for every school and GP in Solihull  
 

Mixture of All Year Round and Term Time Only staff 
 

The team offer mental health and wellbeing tier one support  
 

All nurses in the team have completed the mental health first aid training 
 

We can access support and advice from other services including SOLAR  
 

Accept direct referrals to School Nursing  
 

Directly refer to other services 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

• signpost and refer to specialist services. 
 

  
 

  
 

P
age 46



Offer:  

Online: 

1. Health needs assessment  at year 6 and year 9 
 

2. ChatHealth  08:00 – 18:00 Monday to Friday for senior school pupils  
 

3. Websites -  www.healthforkids.co.uk  and www.healthforteens.co.uk 
 

4. Twitter  

 

Face to Face: 

1. Drop In service at primary and senior schools  
 

2. Group or individual interventions  
 

3. Offer advice and support to parents/carers 
 

4. Themed assemblies  
 

5. Offer themed and drop In services in community settings  

P
age 47

http://www.healthforkids.co.uk/
http://www.healthforteens.co.uk/


 
   

P
age 48



Brain Development Timelines       
‘Magic windows’ 

Conception to 
age 2-3 

Pre-Birth    1y   2y   3y   4y   5y   6y   7y   8y   9y   10y  11y  12y  13y  14y   

Steady development Adolescent 
brain 

The Parenting Offer in Solihull 

Contact: Denise Milnes-Senior Public Health Specialist- 
Public Health - denise.milnes@solihull.gov.uk  

The focus for parenting support in Solihull is to promote secure 
parent-child attachment through sensitive, attuned parenting as the 

only evidence-based PROTECTIVE FACTOR against the impact of 
adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) 

P
age 49



P
age 50



Parenting Courses 
1) Solihull Approach Online Courses – Antenatal, Postnatal, 

Understanding your Child (6mths-18yrs)- 
www.inourplace.co.uk – free Solihull code APPLEJACKS 

2) Solihull Approach Face-to-Face courses – Antenatal 
(Midwives), Postnatal (Health Visitors), Understanding Your 
Child’s Behaviour (0-19 years) 

3) Empowering Parents Empowering Communities (EPEC) 

VISION - “To enable every parent in Solihull to be an effective                              

and engaged caregiver via access to advice, parenting education and 

building peer support in the community” 

Parenting Programmes are co-ordinated by Solar as part of the 
Children’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health contract and 

are facilitated by a range of agencies (e.g. Children’s Services, 
Schools, School Nurses, Parent Volunteers) 

P
age 51

http://www.inyourplace.co.uk/


• EPEC is an evidence-based, low-cost parenting programme 

• EPEC courses are peer-led by local parents who successfully complete 
accredited EPEC training (60 hours over 10 weeks)  

• EPEC courses offered: North and West Solihull to vulnerable families 
particularly those with children with behavioural issues aged 2-11  

• Courses consist of eight 2 hour sessions for 8-12 parents/                  
carers and integrate behaviour change with adult learning  

• EPEC aims to improve child development and outcomes,              
parenting, family resilience and social capital combining       
developmental science and theory with well-evidenced                 
parenting strategies 

• FREE for Solihull (NESTA funded) - By parents, for parents 

 

P
age 52



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

Scrutiny Meeting Recommendations Key Outcomes / Progress 
23rd May 2017 Voice of the Child

(iv). That the Scrutiny Board 
RECOMMENDS the mapping and 
triangulation of the way the Local 
Authority consider the children’s voice 
 and how effective this is across all 
departments.

Viewpoint is used for all LAC reviews.
OVOS now established- 2 groups
Celebration events
YP interview panels for majority of roles 
within Children’s services.
YP sit on Local Transformation Plan 
Partnership Board.
VOC runs through all areas of business, 
however should continually be improved

12th September 2017 School Organisational Plan 

That the Scrutiny Board RECOMMENDS 
that the Cabinet Member for Transport   
and   Highways / Children’s Services, 
Education and Skills to ensure that there 
is a strengthened and proactive 
emphasis in considering   infrastructure 
issues, i.e. appropriate bus stops and 
walking to school   initiatives so that 
young people can have easy access to 
new and   existing   schools from new 
development sites (noting that Arden 
Cross will a motorway between a 
secondary school and residents).

It is a requirement of any school expansion 
to seek the views and recommendations of 
the Highways Team, especially when 
considering the necessary planning 
permissions required.

In response to highways recommendations 
the Children’s Services Department has 
financially supported the creation of 
walking bus initiatives at both Blossomfield 
Infant School and Greswold Primary school 
at the time of their expansion.  These were 
developed in partnership with the 
Sustainable Travel Team.

As part of the Tidbury Green Primary 
School expansion, direct access from one 
of the new housing developments via a 
new gate on to the school site has been 
explored, rather than parents having to 
travel around the school site to the front 
entrance of the school.

For the Arden Cross site the travel patterns 
of secondary age pupils will need to be 
considered as part of the detailed master 
planning process for the site.

12th September 2017 Future of Education Support Services

(I). The Scrutiny Board RECOMMENDED 
that the Director of Learning and Skills 
encourage all schools in the Borough to 
engage in peer-to-peer support 
initiatives.

There have been 13 schools who have 
engaged in peer to peer reviews since 
2017.

6th November 2019 MASH / Engage 

The Scrutiny Board make the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to  
Officers/Executive to further develop 
and improve services
a) Explore with the Police on whether 
the rotation of personnel and Police 
Officer can be reduced from 6 to 3 
Officers to minimize disruption in the 
MASH.
b) Encourage peer support/self-help in 

a) On-going conversation is taking 
place with the Police in order to 
reduce the rotation of personal 
within Mash. We are confident of 
the Police commitment to work 
closely and in partnership with 
children services.

b) Children services are currently 
undergoing a management of 
change which includes Engage, 
MASH and Child Assessment / 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

view of constraints   being faced by 
Engage.
c) Encourage the development of Edge 
of Care Service and that there are clear 
messages about what this service is and 
what this service isn’t.

Child In Need teams. The new 
model of working will increase 
capacity and support the delivery 
of service to children in family 
identified as being in need of 
targeted or statutory intervention.

c) The Edge of Care service was set 
up and has helped the shaping of 
the new Family Support Service 
model.

6th November 2016 Employment and Skills for young 
people. 

The Scrutiny Board noted the update on 
how the Local Authority worked with its 
partners to support NEETs and made the 
following  RECOMMENDATIONS to 
Officers/Executive to further develop 
and improve the service:
a) Ensure that there are sufficient 
pathways for NEETs who have mental 
health needs
b) A letter about options for pupils aged 
14 should be sent earlier to better 
enable an informed decision.

a) Through the Youth Promise Plus 
project, young people age 16-29 who 
are NEET were supported by the Youth 
Promise Plus programme. Those with 
Mental Health issues were referred to 
Better Pathways who specialised in 
providing the right support to help 
young people move into Employment, 
Education or training. 
Youth Promise Plus project is set to 
resume in May 18, pending final 
approval by DWP, with a further 
commissioned provider supporting 
young people with Mental Health / 
Learning Disabilities. The contract for 
Mental Health & LD should be in place 
in May-June 2019. In the meantime the 
Employment and Skills Team continue 
to sign post to Solar, or Kooth, as 
appropriate. The team is also making 
stronger links with the BSMHT and 
services at the Newington Centre. 

b) There is a statutory letter at age 14, 
schools make pupils aware of options 
before then.

6th November 2017 Alternative Provision 

The Scrutiny Board noted the proposed 
direction of travel in respect of the 
formation of the Alternative Provision 
service and make the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to 
Officers/Executive to further develop 
and improve the service.
a) Ensure that there is much more 
promotion of mental health 
activities/events in schools and 
Alternative Provision, i.e. Mental Health 
week.
b) Ensure that all schools promote 
inclusivity to reduce the need for long-
term alternative provision
c) Build capacity within schools for them 
to develop alternative provision options 
within a mainstream school 

a) All schools and alternative providers 
have access to resources and 
information from Solihull’s Health and 
Wellbeing website:  
http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/ 

The Headteacher of our pupil referral 
unit (PRU) for pupils aged 11-16 with 
significant medical needs is part of a 
mental health in secondary schools 
stakeholder group.

b) This is a key aim. An Inclusion Strategy 
is being developed following an 
Inclusion Conference for all schools in 
Solihull in November 2018.

c) The Council will work closely with any 
schools or groups of schools who wish 
to explore the development of 

Page 54

http://www.solgrid.org.uk/wellbeing/


CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

environment. alternative provision options in their 
school or collaborative. 

15th January 2018 Service Improvements Since Ofsted 

I) The Scrutiny Board noted the progress 
made by the Directorate since the 
Ofsted Inspection and made the 
following RECOMMENDATIONS to 
Leaders in the Directorate
a) To ensure that the development of 
Edge of Care Service is clearly-defined.
b) Support the development of Foster 
Care Business Manager to better deal 
with and tackle a variety of foster care 
issues.
c) Continue to place an emphasis on 
developing the challenge culture and 
better the consistency as a means to 
continually improve services.

a) Edge of Care service set up and helped 
develop the New Family Support 
Service model.  

b) Fostering Service Review undertaken 
and New Fostering Team Manager 
appointed – Started Feb 2019.  

c) QA role within all Audits and ATMs 
and TM complete monthly case file 
audits.  
Commissioned an external auditor to 
completed themed audits on a regular 
basis – evidence of continued progress 
in areas with learning disseminated.  
IROs provide challenge and scrutiny of 
CP and LAC cases through RAG process 
–escalating to HoS where needed.
Contribute to LSCB audits audit 
process – learning shared in the 
service.

15th January 2018 Children’s Services Workforce issues

The Scrutiny Board noted the report and 
support being provided to social workers 
and made the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to Officers to 
explore how working conditions could 
be further improved for social workers
a) Look at whether social workers could 
be exempt from parking restrictions in 
the Borough
b) Look at the use of better use of 
technology as part of lone-working
c) Look at how to resolve contact centre 
issues outlined above
d) Continue to promote a vibrant 
working environment which rewards 
success and deals with poor practice.

a) Not able to exempt SWs from parking 
restrictions but individual cases can be 
looked at where financial penalties 
mght have been incurred

b) Lone Working Policies updated and 
reviewed.  Consideration of Smart ID 
Badges- Adults are trialling this in 
March 2019.  All workers have laptop 
and smart phone.

c) Contact Centre established at Willow 
House, however more capacity is 
required.  Work to secure additional 
venues is currently being undertaken. 

d) Work Force Development Awards and 
Council Employee Awards.  Poor 
practice is addressed as part of 
supervision and capability procedures 
as required.  

30th January 2018 
(joint with HASCSB)

0-25 SEND Agenda 

The Scrutiny Board noted the progress 
made in embedding the 0-25 SEND 
Service but felt that Senior Officers 
needed to take note of the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to further develop 
and improve the Service
a) To better promote the Local Offer 
website and materials to parents
b) To strengthen employment pathways 
for SEND and ensure that there are 
strong employer links with SEND groups.
c) Reflect upon the language in SEND 
documents to service users and their 

a) Local Offer post card distribution 
continues to further promote the 
website.

b) The Employment and Skills Team work 
with the Chamber and Federation of 
Small Businesses to promote 
opportunities for SEN jobs in the 
Private Sector; SEN Internship’s are 
promoted across those networks 
providing opportunities for local 
businesses to develop a progression 
route into paid jobs for any young SEN 
person. The Council (Employment and 

Page 55



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

families and look at ways to make it 
more accessible.
d) Review of the priorities in the Joint 
Strategy to include targets and 
timescales to enable this strategic 
document to be more focused.

Skills and Procurement Teams) work 
with local contractors under their 
social value obligations to offer up 
work experience, training, volunteering 
and paid work opportunities for 
unemployed SEN residents and, 
European Social Fund Projects 
(Birmingham & Solihull Youth Promise 
Plus) is specifically funding an SEN 
Careers Guidance Officer to work with 
local businesses and those young 
people on an EHCP to develop local 
jobs/initiatives.

c) The service continues to do our best to 
write in plain English and we have 
recently improved the accessibility 
button on the Local Offer. 

d) The Joint Strategy is being reviewed in 
line with the developing Inclusion 
Strategy for Solihull.

30th January 2018 Feedback from 0-25 SEND Inspection 

The Scrutiny Board noted the feedback 
from the Ofsted / CQC SEND Inspection 
and asked Lead Officers / Cabinet 
Member to consider the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to further 
improve the Service
a) Ensure that SEND Performance and 
outcomes measures are meaningful and 
easy to understand.
b) Better co-ordination/input from 
health and care professionals at a 
practical/operational level into all 
ECHPs.
c) Have a focus on improving the quality 
and consistency of ECHPs and ensure 
that Solar is an integral part of the 
quality assurance processes.
d) Support the feasibility study and 
innovation into setting up a localized 
ASD school in the Borough to respond to 
local need.

a) The service has developed a 
performance dashboard which reports 
regularly to Ed/SEND and the SEND 
Board.

b) The Single Route of Redress project 
continues to develop the health and 
social care information within EHCP’s. 
Additional staffing has been agreed 
from April 2019.

c) Focus remains upon improving the 
quality as well as the timeliness of the 
EHCP. The new Designated Medical 
Officer will support this work when she 
starts in April 2019.

d) We await the outcome of the Bid for 
an ASD school in the Borough.

30th January 2018 Transitions 

The Scrutiny Board noted the report and 
made the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to leading 
Officers/Cabinet Member to further 
develop and improve the services that 
are provided in respect of transitions.
a) Ensure that there is a professional 
advocate for young people to help them 

a) Young people are referred to Solihull 
action through advocacy
If this is required

b) The Childrens team social worker now 
sends an alert to the transitions team 
when the young person is age 14. This 
highlights them as a young person 

Page 56



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

through transitions.
b) Ensure that there is better planning 
and information made available to 
service users / parents to support 
transitions and that the process is 
started when they reach age 14.
c) Ensure that lesson-learnt workshop is 
carried out to learn from case-study 
examples shared with the Scrutiny Board 
and this information is fed back to the 
Board.
d) Ensure that there is strengthened 
access to mental health during 
transitions for SEND young people who 
may need this support.
e) Ensure children and young people’s 
pathways to Bereavement Services are 
strengthened and access is improved.

likely to require transitions support. At 
age 16 the young person is allocated a 
transitions worker to begin to attend 
key meetings with the children’s social 
worker and to acquaint themselves 
with information about the young 
person generally. The service is aiming 
for transitions assessments to be done 
by age 17 ½

c) There is now a pathway in place to 
support mental health transitions.

d) The transitions team has close links 
with Oliver House who provided 
community health support including 
psychology, psychiatry, OT Speech and 
Language for adults. This has been 
expanded to now include support 
through the transitions process.

The Team Managers are working with 
Oliver house to develop similar 
pathways that reflect the new 
transition pathway e.g. one young 
person age 17 is working with Oliver 
House alongside the children and 
adults social workers to support his 
transition.

The new Designated Medical Officer 
and Designated clinical officer will also 
support SEND transitions.

30th January 2018 5-19 Child Health Service 

The Scrutiny Board noted the promising 
start and progress made by the School 
Nursing Service to-date and felt that the 
Service should take account of the 
following RECOMMENDATIONS to shape 
further improvements.
a) Ensure that there is greater visibly 
amongst parents
b) Support extending digital access to 
the Service and working with young 
people/apprentices to further develop 
access channels.
c) Improve working relationship with 
Solar and with Social Care, particularly 
during a period of transitions.
d) Explore pooling budgets with 
Education Service to improve Offer.

a) The drop-in provision is being reviewed 
in primary schools are a community 
outreach approach will be piloted to 
increase visibility of the service. In 
secondary schools, the ChatHealth text 
messaging service ensures that all 
children and young people with mobile 
phones can directly contact a School 
Nurse and receive a response within 1 
working day. The service was launched 
in October 2018 and usage is high and 
growing.

b) Digital access has increased with the 
launch of two websites (one for 
children and one for teenagers) using 
national and local content with direct 
links to local service providers. 
ChatHealth (see above) has also 
increased the digital accessibility into 
the service and the School Nurse team 
has established a productive twitter 
handle.

c) Work has been ongoing to support 
children’s emotional wellbeing and 
mental health. The team offer mental 
health and wellbeing tier one support 

Page 57



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

and all nurses in the team have 
completed the Mental Health First Aid 
training. The team access support and 
advice from Solar and refer directly to 
the service. The team also attend 
safeguarding meetings where 
necessary and ensure that they have 
good links with social care. The health 
check at Year 6 ensures that any issues 
relating to transition to secondary 
school can be flagged and responded 
to appropriately.

d) It is not deemed practical to pool 
budgets at this time but may be 
appropriate in the future.
     

13th March 2018 Local Authority’s role in being a good 
Corporate Parent 

The Scrutiny Board noted the progress 
being made by the Local Authority to 
provide support to LAC/Care Leavers but 
felt that Director of Children’s Services 
in conjunction with the Cabinet Member 
needed to make the following points to 
explore the feasibility of the following 
RECOMMENDATIONS to further shape 
and improve support to LAC/Care 
Leavers.
a) Councillors and Officers in the Local 
Authority are more proactive about 
promoting positive messages about 
LAC/Care Leavers.
b) Ensure work is undertaken to refine 
Viewpoint to make it less onerous for 
LAC/Care Leavers to fill in.
c) Support the development of 
relationships with Social Workers in less 
formal environments.
d) To be ‘pushy’ Corporate Parents in 
terms of supporting and challenging 
LAC/Care Leavers to reach their 
potential.
e) The Local Authority, its partners and 
contractors to consider positive 
discriminations opportunities to support 
LAC/Care Leavers in securing 
employment and other opportunities.
f) Consider putting in place shared 
accommodation options for Care 
Leavers
g) Ensure that bespoke support is 
offered to LAC/Care Leavers that is 
responsive to their individual needs 
rather than trying to embed them within 
a generic process.
h) Start transitions planning earlier and 

a) Development of the Local Offer- 
Launched Jan 2019. Apprenticeship 
schemes taken up by local care 
leavers. OVOS group developed a film 
to use in recruitment and training of 
social workers and foster carers. 

b) Viewpoint continues to be used, 
however tendering process to take 
place.  YP can present their views in 
many ways to their LAC review.  
Encourage participation.

c) Social workers encouraged to meet 
children/yp where they prefer to meet. 

d) Social workers/ schools and IRO’s to 
encourage ambition and talents of YP. 
Encourage use of Pupil Premium to 
help support attendance at clubs and 
activities. 

e) Apprenticeship programmes offered. 
Mentoring of Care leavers offered 

f) To continue developing potential 
accommodation options for Care 
Leavers that meet need.

g) Local Offer launched.  Social workers 
and PA’s work with individual YP to 
develop their pathway plan, to include 
services and choice.

h) Local Offer launched.  Transitions 
continue to be an area of focus, 
involving many areas of the council and 
partners.  Social workers are 
encouraged to consider Pathway 
planning prior to 16th birthday and at 
14 for children with additional needs. 

i) Life skills- training for foster carers.  
Healthy Living Group offered  to YP by 
CA16+ team.  Cooking Groups offered.  

Page 58



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

support young people to prepare for this 
period and provide them with support if 
they are struggling.
i) The Local Authority, its partners and 
foster carers work together to develop 
life-skills for LAC/Care Leavers.

13th March 2018 Education of LAC

The Scrutiny Board noted the report 
from the Virtual Headteacher and made 
the following RECOMMENDATIONS to 
Cabinet Member and Director of 
Children’s Services:
a) Ensure that all designated teachers 
including those who are Out of Borough 
are encouraged to support LAC to reach 
their potential.
b) Ensure that Care Leavers are 
encouraged to fulfil their dreams and 
aspirations.
c) That the Local Authority to support 
where possible with LAC.

The virtual school have incorporated into 
their training programme, a career 
planning session for carers and social 
workers. Feedback was very positive. 

Joint working with 16+ team, employment 
and skills and virtual school specialist 
careers advisers to focus on NEET. 
Developing further work experience 
opportunities and increasing numbers who 
participate. Work experience for years 10 
& 11 is being monitored through their PEP. 
Proactively encouraging participation in 
enriching opportunities e.g. work 
experience at Jaguar Land Rover, Unifest 
and National Citizenship Service. 

Updating training to incorporate the 
success stories from Engage where they’ve 
supported looked after children/care 
leavers from work experience to 
permanent positions. 

Working with Arts Connect and the music 
service, locally and regionally, to develop 
enriching experiences for children and 
young people. First event in in May 2019.

20th June 2018 Ofsted Action Plan 

That Cabinet Member for Children 
Education and Skills be Recommended 
to review progress and consider 
whether any further action is required in 
relation to the red risks identified on the 
action plan in relation to 
 number 22 too many children were 

waiting for assessment by an 
occupational therapist (OT); and

 number 23 despite additional 
investment from commissioners, the 
special assessment service for 
autism had recently seen an increase 
in waiting times from 18 weeks to 26 
weeks.

Following a business case to the CCG 
additional investment has been agreed for 
both the paediatric occupational therapy 
service and the specialist assessment 
service for autism assessment and 
diagnosis. Recruitment of additional staff 
has taken some time; however they have 
now all been recruited and are in post. 
There is now a robust plan in place to 
reduce the waiting times to a maximum of 
18 weeks by the end of this calendar year 
(2019). We have agreed the trajectory and 
are monitoring this carefully to ensure they 
remain on track.

7th November 2018 Attainment and Progress in Solihull 
Schools 

Page 59



CSESSB Scrutiny Recommendations and Outcomes 2017-18

The Scrutiny Board note the reports on 
various aspects of education and make 
the following RECOMMENDATIONS to 
the Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services, Education and Skills and the 
Assistant Director for Learning and Skills 
to further develop and improve services
a) Ensure that there is a focus on 
aspiration at an early stage.
b) Ensure that vulnerable young people 
with mental health needs and SEND are 
given adequate and suitable 
employment support.
c) to raise the issue of off-rolling at the 
Strategic Accountability Board and do 
some further analysis of this issue to 
feedback to the Scrutiny Board.
d) For the Local Authority to strengthen 
the advice, guidance and publicity it 
gives about Elective Home Education 
Service, and
e) That there is strengthened 
partnership working with local partners 
to identify young people who have been 
in EHE from statutory school age.

a) Solihull is part of the closing the gap 
pilot.  Working with 6 schools focussing 
on disadvantaged pupils and for all 
pupils.
Also at termly leaders and managers 
meetings the early years team have 
been challenging schools to analyse 
exceeding data and focus on higher 
attaining pupils with potential to 
exceed early learning goals. 

b) Recruitment is currently underway for 
a career’s adviser to support post 16 
SEND.

c) This will be raised at the next SSSAB 
meeting.

d) This is ongoing
e) The Local Authority uses all available 

and appropriate data.  The Home 
Education Bill, should it receive royal 
assent, would require all Electively 
Home Educated children to be 
registered with the Local Authority.  
We await possible legislative change.

Page 60


	Agenda
	4 Minutes - 15th January 2019
	5 Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Services for Children and Young People
	Presentations to CSESSB - Cover Sheet
	Young People's Scrutiny meeting presentation
	mental health for scrutiny, natasha chamberlain
	Community EP Team & Mental Wellbeing
	SN Scrutiny - 14 Mar 2019 - emontional health and wellbeing meeting
	Parenting Scrutiny pres - 14 Mar

	6 Considering the impact and outcomes emerging from Scrutiny recommendations

